
 

WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING 

June 10, 2015 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Warren Zoning Board of Appeals was called on Wednesday, 
June 10, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. in the Warren Community Center Conference Room A, 5460 
Arden Avenue, Warren, Michigan 48092. 
 
Members of the Board present: 
Steve Watripont, Chairman 
Judy Furgal, Vice-Chairwoman 
Jules Descamps 
Henry Brasza 
Sherry Brasza 
Ann Pauta 
 

Members of the Board absent: 
Roman Nestorowicz, Secretary 
Jennifer Vigus, Asst. Secretary 
Jean Becher 
 
Also present: 
Roxanne Canestrelli, City Attorney 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Watripont called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
Chairman Watripont stated the three members that are absent had notified the 
rest of the Board Members due to illness and one is a business related; was 
there a motion to excuse?  
 
Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to excuse the absences of Secretary 
Nestorowicz, Assistant Secretary Vigus and Board Member Becher.  Board 
Member H. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 
 
Chairman Watripont requested to excuse Secretary Nestorowicz, Assistant Sec-
retary Vigus, and Board Member Becher. 
 

4. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to move Item number 12 to Item 
number 5a on the Agenda.  Member S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if there is a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.  

 
Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to adopt the Agenda as amended.  
Member H. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote: 
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0) 
 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF the Regular Meeting of May 27, 2015. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he would like to make a motion to reschedule this 
item to July 8th, meeting, due to… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this was the approval of the minutes.  
 
Board Member Descamps apologized and stated it was for Item 5a. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to approve the minutes of May 27, 
2015 with the adjustments of the last page that was handed out.  Board Member 
Descamps supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 
 
 

5a. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Mr. David Draper-USE- 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  8129 Westminster 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-34-304-033 
ZONE:     R-1-C 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: -USE- 
Have a three family dwelling, upper, lower units and basement unit, in a single family 
residential zone.  
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.01 thru 7.01:  Uses in residential districts: Multi family dwellings are 
not allowed in single family districts. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to reschedule this item to July 8, 
2015 meeting due to absence of the three Members of the Board; Support by 
Board Member S. Brasza. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
Chairman Watripont stated if anyone in the audience present for Item number 12; 
8129 Westminster, it is a Use variance, which requires six affirmative votes and the 
Board will not hear it because they only have a six member board today, it will be 
heard on July 8th, 2015 and it will not be reposted.  If anyone in the audience is pre-
sent tonight for any other matter; it is a six member Board and if anyone does not 
wish to have their items heard today because there are only six members and they 
would need five affirmative votes, to inform the Board as their items are called.  Due 
to the absence of the Secretary and the Assistant Secretary, the Board must vote on 
an Acting Secretary for the day. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to elect Board Member Furgal to be 
the Acting Secretary for tonight’s meeting; Support by Board Member Pauta. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING  APPLICANT: Wojtuniechi Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 (Rescheduled from 05-13-15) 
REPRESENTATIVE: Tim Storey/Storey Engineering Group, LLC 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 24649 Mound Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 13-29-228-022 
ZONE:    M-2 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to 
1. Retain hard surfacing to no less than 3.25’ of the front (Mound) property for park-

ing as per the plan. 
2. Allow parking of truck/trailers on gravel lot as per the plan. 
3. Allow 8904 sq. ft. of open storage area as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (a): Industrial Standards. Front yards. In an M-2 zone 
where a front yard has been established by the majority of the existing buildings in a 
block, all buildings hereinafter erected or altered shall conform to the building line 
thus established, provided no building in an M-2 zone shall be required to set back 
further than fifty (50) feet. Provided, further, however, notwithstanding any provisions 
to the contrary, in M-2 zones, yards fronting on a major thoroughfare as defined by 
the Master Thoroughfare Plan for the City of Warren or front yards facing a residen-
tial district shall be fifty (50) feet. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 4 

 

 

Section 4.32 (k): All off-street parking shall be provided with adequate ingress and 
egress, shall be hard surfaced with concrete or plant-mixed bituminous material 
(base may be stabilized gravel or equivalent) shall be maintained in a usable dust-
proof condition, shall be graded and drained to dispose of all surface water, provided 
protective bumper curbs… 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (a): Industrial standards.  Open storage area may not 
exceed fifty (50) percent of the gross floor area of the primary structure on the site. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated again there are only six members present and he needs 
five affirmative votes; if he wishes to reschedule it, to inform the Board.  He asked 
the individual to state his name and address for the record. 
 
Tim Storey, Storey engineering, 48264 Manchester, Macomb, Michigan appeared 
before the Board and introduced Rick; he asked him (Rick) if he would like to re-
schedule; he stated that Rick is the property owner. 
 
Rick stated he would like to reschedule since the Board is short on the voters. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individuals at the podium if July 8, 2015 was fine.  
 
Rick stated yes. 
 
Tim Storey asked for the date once more?  
 
Chairman Watripont stated July 8th.  He asked the Board Members if there was a 
motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to reschedule this item to the July 
8th, 2015 meeting; Supported by Board Member H. Brasza. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
Chairman Watripont stated to Mr. Storey that he is rescheduled for the July 8, meet-
ing.  Again any rescheduling by Board with the date certain will not be reposted. 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Jesus Concepcion 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  2177 Chicago Road  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-06-302-008 
ZONE:     R-1-B 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Construct a second garage (24’ x 32’ = 768 sq. ft.) with an existing attached garage 
(20’ x 20’ = 400 sq. ft.) for a total of 1168 sq. ft. of accessory buildings. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 5 

 

 

ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.01Paragraph(i): …All garages and/or accessory building shall not contain 
more than seven hundred (700) square feet of floor area.  Only one (1) private gar-
age for each residential lot is allowed. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Jesus Concepcion appeared before the Board and introduced himself. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. Concepcion the reason for his petition. 
 
Jesus Concepcion stated they need more storage to place their stuff.  It is hard to 
organize all of their stuff because they could not appreciate using their existing gar-
age right now. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated the Board would like to verify that he would like to move 
forward and not reschedule?  
 
Jesus Concepcion stated he was good to go forward. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing and anyone wishing to speak on 
this item to approach the podium. 
 
Joseph Hunt appeared before the Board and stated he is a homeowner and taxpay-
er in the City.  This is off of Chicago Road where there is a lot of space and he spe-
cifically is very much aware of the Chicago Road area and he is all for the Petition-
er’s request for the variance.  He thinks that it will go well with the area, new con-
struction and it serves a useful purpose. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Mr. Hunt and asked if there was anyone else wishing 
to speak on this matter?  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the 
Board. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she had a question for Mrs. Martin; the Board was not 
given a site plan for this request… 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated not a sealed site plan. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated not any kind of a site plan; they do not even know 
where it is going to go. 
 
(Board Member S. Brasza provided Board Member Pauta a copy of the site plan) 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated the last page was the site plan she had. 
 
Board Member Descamps asked Mrs. Martin if this was in the Historic Area. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 

Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated no; it was not. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated if there was no further discussion, she would like to 
make a motion... 
 

Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Construct a second garage (24’ x 32’ = 768 sq. ft.) with an existing attached gar-
age (20’ x 20’ = 400 sq. ft.) for a total of 1168 sq. ft. of accessory buildings. 
 

Reason being: Due to size and Shape of the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Descamps supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member S. Brasza; Support 
by Board Member Descamps in support of the variance as request.  Reasons be-
ing is, Not a Detriment to the Area, Size and Shape of the Lot.  He asked for Roll 
Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Mr. Joe Assi 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  4677 12 Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-08-378-016 
ZONE:     R-1-C 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
Construct a 15’ x 8’ = 120 sq. ft. shed to no less than two (2) feet of the east property 
line as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.20 Paragraph (a): All detached accessory buildings shall conform to and 
shall not project beyond the existing building lines f the principal building on the lot. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 7 

 

 

Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Joseph Assi, 4677 E. 12 Mile Road, Warren, Michigan 48092 appeared before the 
Board and stated he is a taxpayer of the City of Warren trying to replace a shed, 
move it five (5) feet from where it was and closer to the fence and replace it with a 
plastic one for that one that he tore down that was aluminum and it was rusted. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the petitioner for his hardship. 
 
Joseph Assi stated his hardship is the fact that it takes up too much space in the 
backyard where it is sitting not centered but to the hidden area, where the side of the 
shed there was actually nothing there and he could not do anything to it.  The closer 
he gets it to the fence the more he could do to his property and bring up the value. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing and anyone wishing to speak on 
this item to approach the podium. 
 
Joseph Assi stated all of his neighbors approved of it from three hundred (300) 
yards; he went home to home to get approval. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he appreciates that but the Board needs it on the record 
from them or complaints from them. 
 
Joseph Assi stated absolutely. 
 
Joseph Hunt stated he is all in favor for this variance.  As he walks around the city 
on the campaign trail every year he sees all kinds of sheds that are not in line of 
sight and it does not really bother him at all.  He thinks that the Zoning Ordinances 
need to be updated as well as the master plan, but he thinks the plan the petitioner 
has is fantastic and he does not see any detriment especially if the neighbors are all 
in favor of it.  In his neighborhood people build their sheds out of the line of sight all 
of the time, so he is in favor of this. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Mr. Hunt and stated hearing and seeing no one else, 
he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated to the petitioner that the only problem that she has with 
two (2) feet is sometimes that does not get maintained very well?  
 
Joseph Assi stated because of the distance; if the Board wants he could put it flush 
against the fence that he is putting up, which it plastic… 
 
Board Member Furgal stated no. 
 
Joseph Assi stated or he could push it back—it is a minimum of two (2) feet—he 
could push it back to three (3) feet so a lawnmower could go back there?  
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 8 

 

 

Board Member Furgal stated she believes she likes that better personally that way 
he could get a lawnmower in there because then he does not have to worry about 
her. 
 
Joseph Assi stated that was fine, obviously he is a disabled veteran, so he has a 
company that comes out and maintains his lawn. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated okay. 
 
Board Member Pauta asked the petitioner why he was not placing it on the left side 
where there is concrete.  
 
Joseph Assi stated because there is an easement on the left side; he cannot put it 
on the left side, it has to be on the right side.  He would have preferred that but there 
is an easement there so he cannot. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated and if they had to get in there they would destroy it. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated if there was no other discussion by the Board, he 
would like to make a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Construct a 15’ x 8’ = 120 sq. ft. shed to no less than three (3) feet of the east 
property line as per the plan. 
 

Reason being: Size and Shape of the Lot, Needs Approval of the Board, and Not a 
Detriment to the Area, and to be sure to get all of the required permits. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Descamps; Sup-
port by Board Member H. Brasza.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED at three (3) feet. 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 9 

 

 

9. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Holy Cross Lutheran Church 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Jerry R. Kelly 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  30003 Ryan Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-07-279-031 
ZONE:     R-1-B 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to:  
Conduct an Outdoor Classic Car Show on Sunday afternoon, September 27, 2015, 
from 12:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4.35: Festivals require the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Jerry Kelly, 29252 Shirley Avenue, Madison Heights, Michigan 48071 appeared be-
fore the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the petitioner the reason for his petition. 
 
Jerry Kelly stated he is requesting permission for Holy Cross Annual Classic Car 
Show and fun-fest.  They have had it for over fifteen (15) years without any problems 
whatsoever and he is present to ask for the permission. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated looking at the variance requested it shows for Sep-
tember 27, 2014, do they want the 15?  The year shows on the Board’s records’ 
2014. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated his request actually has 2015; it is a typing error… 
 
Board Member Furgal stated it was published properly. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated okay that was his question. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated if no one else had any further comments, he would 
like to make his motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member H. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Conduct an Outdoor Classic Car Show on Sunday afternoon, September 27, 2015, 
from 12:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 
Reason being: Needs Approval of the Board and Not a Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Descamps supported the motion. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 10 

 

 

Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member H. Brasza; Support 
by Board Member Descamps in favor of this petition; Needs Approval of the Board 
and Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Zouhair Alayan  
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Christopher Alayan 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  23524 Van Dyke 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-27-304-005 
ZONE:     C-2 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
Retain seventeen (17) wall signs as follows: 
On the West (front) elevation: 

1. Two (2) sign 24” x 194” = 32.33 sq. ft. (#1 & #4) 64.66 sq. ft. total 
2. Two (2) sign 48” x 77-1/2” = 25.83 sq. ft. (#2 & #3) 51.66 sq. ft. total 
3. Four (4) sign 24” x 48” = 8 sq. ft. (#5, 6, 7, 8) 32 sq. ft. total 

On South (side) elevation: 
4. One (1) sign 96” x 48” = 32 sq. ft. (#9) 
5. Six (6) signs 44” x 27” = .75 sq. ft. (#10, 11, 12, 13, 14, & 15) 4.5 sq. ft. total 

On the East (rear) elevation: 
6. Two (2) signs 96” x 48” = 32.67 sq. ft. (#16 & 17) 65.34 sq. ft. total 

In addition to a 40 sq. ft. awning sign with a permit. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
SECTION 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sq. ft. shall 
be allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 

 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record.   
 
Christopher Alayan, 23524 Van Dyke, Warren, Michigan, appeared before the 
Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the petitioner the reason for his petition.   



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 11 

 

 

 
Christopher Alayan stated they are petitioning for a hardship.  They never had a 
need for any signs before and they have been there for twenty-seven (27) years.  
They have always had beautiful display windows, they had furniture in the windows, 
they had neon signs and people always knew they were there.  They called his 
mom, mom and his dad pops—it was a mom and pop shop.  After being broken into 
seven (7) times, they had busted the windows, would come in and vandalize it, they 
would cause damage to the furniture, steal jewelry, and he was forced to put up 
block windows on all of the windows for security, so that way his dad at seventy-
seven (77)—twenty-seven (27) years later—could not spend the night the way he 
used to all night until the repair man would come and contact the alarm company, 
and they put up the block windows.  Unfortunately it caused a hardship to their build-
ing because everyone thought they were vacant and assumed that they had locked 
it up and sold the building; walk-in traffic was nonexistent and became extinct.  They 
put the signs up to bring customers back in and it really did, it breathed life back into 
the building, people were coming in and telling them they thought they had closed 
down.  Luckily they were able to put those signs up and it brought the customers 
back in.  They respectfully request they would be permitted to keep those signs up. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item.  Hearing and seeing none, he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza asked what construction the signs will be made of.  
 
Christopher Alayan stated he has the photographs if he may approach?  
 
Board Member Furgal stated the Board has them. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated the Board has them. 
 
Christopher Alayan stated oh the Board already has them?  
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated yes; she just wonders how they are going to be 
constructed.  
 
Christopher Alayan stated they are already constructed. They have been firmed af-
fixed to them and are bolted down.  Most of them are made of metal signs, other 
ones are just made of a sticker strong material that is firmly affixed to the sign; there 
are no risks of them being blown away and causing any type of damage or debris; 
they are firm signs. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza thanked the petitioner. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated in all due respect, she has no objections to him having 
signs on the building and she does appreciate them having had some difficulties; 
however, this was excessive signage on the outside of a building. They need to 
come up with a more reasonable plan; she would like to hear what he would suggest 
as being more reasonable, because she could not support all of these signs. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 12 

 

 

 
Christopher Alayan stated he appreciates that.  If it was more reasonable to cut 
down some of the signs but just be allowed to maybe keep the ones that are in the 
window and the larger ones that are metal and affixed to the rear.  He has the pho-
tographs and he could actually point to them. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated his identification signs are important for the name of 
their company but she would think that some of the others are superfluous. 
 
Board Member Descamps asked the petitioner if he realizes that he needs five (5) 
votes for what he was asking. 
 
Christopher Alayan stated yes. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated and he agrees with his colleague that this was ex-
cessive and he thinks that it might be wise that he goes back and then come back 
with a plan that would be more appropriate to get an affirmative answer, because as 
it stands right now he does not think that he was going to get that. 
 
Christopher Alayan asked if he may then adjourn the matter to July 8th. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a request by the petitioner to reschedule to July 
8th, was there a motion?  
 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to reschedule this item to the July 
8th, 2015 meeting; Supported by Board Member Pauta. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
 

This item was rescheduled to July 8th, 2015 meeting. 
 
 

Chairman Watripont stated the petitioner’s item has been rescheduled and it will not 
be reposted. He does suggest that the petitioner does come back with his alterna-
tives to what he could live, because he knows he could not vote for the way it was 
also. 
 
Christopher Alayan stated he appreciates the opportunity and thanked the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 13 

 

 

11. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Auto Palace / Nader Investment 
                 Properties LLC 
REPRESENTATIVE:  Metro Detroit Signs / Mr. Kevin Deters 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  21816 Dequindre 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-31-152-021 
ZONE:     M-2 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: 
Install one (1) wall sign 55” x 432” = 165 sq. ft. sign on the west elevation. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4A.35 (c): Total wall signage of a size not to exceed forty (40) sq. ft. shall 
be allowed for each business in C-1, C-2, C-3, M-1 and M-2. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Kevin Deters, with Metro Detroit Signs, 23544 Hoover Road, Warren, Michigan 
48089 appeared before the Board and stated that Nick the president of Auto Palace, 
could not be present this evening as he is out of town.  Basically what he had told 
him is that when they went to site plan approval and they got previous variances for 
their building, their lot, several months ago he gave him this drawing (Representative 
presented drawing to the Board).  He had told him that this was one of the elevations 
that was approved on their site plan but then come to find out when he went to the 
get his sign permit, they are only allowed one (1) wall sign at forty (40) sq. ft., which 
he was not aware of at the time they received their site plan approval. What they are 
asking for—obviously the Board knows which sign they are asking for—and do to 
the large width of the storefront they feel that it is not unreasonable; a forty (40) 
square foot sign on the left sign on the left side of that storefront next to the bay 
doors would look disproportionately small, so they are just asking for—yes a much 
larger sign—than what they are allowed, but given the size of the building and the 
layout of that sign band he thinks that this sign looks really good on their building 
and would look a lot better than a tiny-dinky forty (40) square foot wall sign would 
and Nick tells him that he has a lot of support from his neighbors and that no one 
has really complained about it; he asked him to point that out as well and he would 
be happy to answer any questions of the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
item? Hearing and seeing none; they Board received a signed letter that he would 
like to have read into the record before he turned the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member Furgal read the letter as follows:  ‘To Warren Board of Appeals, re-
garding: Auto Palace 21816 Dequindre. My name is Juanita Carrier and I live with 
my husband John at 1938 Garrick just south of this building. Our neighbor Judith 
Mousseau lives at 1945 Garrick directly east of the property. We would like you to 
know that we have no problem with the sign that Mr. Naamou has planned for his 
business. Everything that he has done with the property so far has been very well 
done. It is such an improvement to the neighborhood.  If you saw it we think you 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 14 

 

 

would agree. Thank you for your consideration.  Signed by: John and Juanita Carri-
er; Signed by: Judith Mousseau. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he turns the matter over to the Board. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza asked if there was no discussion… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he does have a question for Mrs. Martin.  All of the pre-
vious variance there was nothing related to signage correct as he looks through? 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated correct. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and does he need all of those with his current business?  
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated does he mean the big sign?  
 
Chairman Watripont stated no, the other variances.  Was there any housekeeping 
they could do at this time? 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated they already relinquished the one on 
10/28/09, she guesses no. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated that was the one he looked at and he does see that it 
says on the bottom relinquished now. 
 
Lynn Martin, Chief Zoning Inspector stated yes, she believes the rest have to stay. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated okay and thanked Mrs. Martin. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated if there was no further discussion, she would like to 
make a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member S. Brasza made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
Install one (1) wall sign 55” x 432” = 165 sq. ft. sign on the west elevation. 
 
Reason being: Size and Shape of the Lot, Not a Detriment to the Area, and Lack of 
Identification. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member S. Brasza; Support 
by Board Member Pauta in support of the variance as requested, do to Lack of 
Identification, Size and Shape of the Lot, and Not a Detriment to the Area.  
 
 
 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 15 

 

 

Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she wanted to tell him that she thinks it is beautiful. 
 
Kevin Deters stated he does too; it is a really nice looking sign if he would say so 
himself and he is looking forward to putting it up and thanked the Board.  
 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT:  Mr. David Draper-USE- 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Same as above 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  8129 Westminster 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-34-304-033 
ZONE:     R-1-C 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to: -USE- 
Have a three family dwelling, upper, lower units and basement unit, in a single family 
residential zone.  
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 5.01 thru 7.01:  Uses in residential districts: Multi family dwellings are 
not allowed in single family districts. 
 
This item was moved to Item number 5a. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: ITC Holdings 
 REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Gary R. Kirsh / Regional Manager 

COMMON DESCRIPTION:  6401 8 Mile Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-33-300-020 
ZONE:     M-4 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to:  
1. Replace an existing chain link fence with V barb on the top with a 12’ mini mesh 

fence with V barb on top as per the plan, in the front setback. 
2. Replace an existing chain link fence with V barb with a 16’ wall as per the plan 

without V barb on top. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 16 

 

 

 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 4D.17 Prohibited fences and walls (b): Barbed wire. No person shall con-
struct or cause to be constructed a fence or wall with barbed wire partially or wholly 
affixed to the fence or wall around any property, street, alley, lane, and public high-
way or in front of any public place or space, except as approved for the specific loca-
tion by the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
Section 4D.38 Height: Obscuring walls and fences in non-residential zones shall 
not exceed six (6) feet in height. 
Section 4D.39 Location: All fences and walls shall not extend closer to the front lot 
line than the established building line or front setback line. 
Section 17.02 (a): Front setback for M-4, 200 feet. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Gary Kirsh, with ITC, 27175 Energy Way, Novi, Michigan 48377 appeared before the 
Board and stated he is a Regional Manager for ITC.  ITC is the high voltage trans-
mission company; they have high voltage transmission of energy throughout most of 
this lower part of the State of Michigan.  They also, just south of this building they 
would see one of their lines that come through this property as a former ZBA Mem-
ber in the Washington Township, Zoning Board of Appeals, he certainly respects 
their time and also the rolls that they hold tonight.  They are asking to have the op-
portunity to consider the construction of a 12’ chain link, which they call mini mesh 
fence with V barb on top as well as a 16’precast concrete walls around the station 
that they have, which is north of Eight Mile, west of Sherwood Avenue and east of 
Mound and the reason for the request is, ITC owns and operates transmission sub-
stations as well as the transmission lines and they fall under the guidelines of NERC, 
which is the National Energy Regulatory Commission.  Under review of their substa-
tions it was determined that multiple substations that they have they need to update 
and upgrade some of the security measures that they have.  One of the possibilities 
for them to ensure the safety of their stations is to install the fences as well as the 
precast walls and with this station, what they are currently looking at—he believes 
the Board should have the plans before them and—as noted—the installation of the 
fence and wall, they are still working with the NERC to determine if there is other 
means. They will be putting additional cameras up, there are also on the fences they 
will put movement as well as motion cameras; they are working through the process 
to see what will fit within the guidelines of NERC and if there is anything that they 
could reduce, obviously based on the cost of the system but the opportunity to have 
the variance and if the variance could be granted would allow them to work within 
their guidelines and ultimately work to reach their approval, being NERC.  He would 
certainly answer any questions but out of respect to the Board’s time and will keep 
the overview brief. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is was a public hearing and anyone in the audience 
wishing to speak on this item to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he 
turns the matter to the Board. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 17 

 

 

Board Member Descamps stated the Board likes the fence idea but they ask every-
one that comes before the Board to remove the barb wire because it is kind of a use-
less defense in their opinion and it also makes the city look like a jail.  Would he be 
willing to amend that to remove the barb wire?  
 
Gary Kirsh stated under their current proposal and what they are required to do, that 
is one of the measures that they are asked of.  They did look in area and with the 
Chrysler Plant next door and they also have similar use of the security. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated the Board has asked them to take it off too. 
 
Gary Kirsh stated he is sure that the Board has; yes. 
 
Board Member Descamps thanked Mr. Kirsh. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated respectfully, she disagrees with Board Member 
Descamps on this particular item, because it is a really serious security problem and 
it is a national security problem and she thinks that any kind of protection he could 
his grid, it would be a good thing. 
 
Gary Kirsh stated and they will out of respect to the community; this community and 
other communities, they are looking at the proposal and if they could maintain the 
same fence and do something more with cameras and other means, they would also 
do that but one of the things when they are proposing a plan, they want to make 
sure they have approval to do it and when asked if they have approval from the 
community, they do not want to go on there and yes if they do not have it.  That was 
why he is present tonight. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he thinks he could speak for most people of the Board; 
they do not like the barb wire. 
 
Gary Kirsh stated certainly. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated he understands the security issues and everything that 
entails. He will not vote against it because it has that but they are pretty much as a 
community they are against having that. 
 
Gary Kirsh stated he certainly respects that. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
1. Replace an existing chain link fence with V barb on the top with a 12’ mini mesh 

fence with V barb on top as per the plan, in the front setback. 
2. Replace an existing chain link fence with V barb with a 16’ wall as per the plan 

without V barb on top. 
 

Reason being: Unique property, Not a Detriment to the Area, and Needs approval 
of the Board. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 18 

 

 

 
Board Member H. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Furgal; Support by 
Board Member H. Brasza to approve the variance as requested.  He asked for Roll 
Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated and he understands the Board’s concerns also. 
 
Gary Kirsh thanked the Board for their consideration and stated they will definitely 
work at it, if they could remove they will remove it; he appreciates the Board’s time. 
 
Board Member Furgal thanked Mr. Kirsh. 
 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: X Finity Freight Systems, Inc. / 
             Kenan Selimagic 

 REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Kerm Billette, PCP 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  25585 Sherwood 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-21-326-006 
ZONE:     M-3 

 
VARIANCES REQUESTED:  Permission to:  
1. Allow 24,825 sq. ft. of outdoor storage for trucks and trailers on gravel as per the 

plan along the east and south property lines. 
2. Allow 12,925 sq. ft. of truck and trailer parking on gravel as per the plan to no 

less than 40’ of the front property line. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (s): Open storage other than junk.  All open storage shall 
be located in a designated area approved by the Planning Commission…shall not be 
located in any area required for parking…The designated area shall always be hard 
surfaced and screened from the public street or any residential zoned areas… …In 
M-3 the outside storage may not be closer than one hundred (100) feet from any 
street right-of-way line. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 19 

 

 

Section 4.32 Paragraph (k): All off-street parking areas shall be provided with ade-
quate ingress and egress shall be hard surfaced with concrete or plant-mixed bitu-
minous material (base may be stabilized gravel or equivalent…. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state his name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Kerm Billette, 38628 Warwickshire Drive, Sterling Heights, 48312 appeared before 
the Board and stated he is present tonight with the owners and occupants of the 
building on Sherwood.  The building was built in 1970 and previously the occupant of 
the building had the Board  of Appeals approval for a tank containing diesel fuel and 
it had a whole bunch of requirements for it; he thinks the occupants of the buildings 
at that time requested approval of the tank because diesel fuel was really expensive 
and they were supplying some of their trucks with diesel fuel right direct from the sta-
tion and they could save quite a bit of money.  Since then of course the price of die-
sel fuel has gone down, they have removed the tanks from the property and there is 
nothing left to even indicate there was anything there.  They had to put splash pans, 
they had to put the fire suppression equipment and so forth and part of the request 
was to have the approval on the property for storage of transportation trucks cabs 
and tractors on gravel.  The previous request of the Board of Appeals only had the 
approval for the tanks and since then it has been taken away.  There was never any 
approval made for gravel on the property to park trucks in the entrance way for what 
he believes, seventeen (17) trucks and he redid the site plan to include both portions 
of the property for approval of parking on gravel for semi trucks; the parking has 
been paved for the ten (10) spaces along the property line for customers and for the 
visitors of the property. There are twenty-one (21) spaces at the south property line; 
this is for the truckers who are gone away on their duty and they park their private 
passenger cars there while they are on the road and he thinks a floor plan was in-
cluded that shows that they service five (5) trucks in the building.  The gravel area is 
for the parking of eighteen (18) and twenty-six (26) trucks and they were requesting 
that both areas for parking of trucks for overnight and for the short-term be approved 
as for parking on gravel.  The owners are present as well as the occupant to answer 
any questions. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone wishing to speak on this 
matter to approach the podium.  Hearing and seeing none, he turns the matter over 
to the Board. 
 
Board Member H. Brasza stated they stated it, are they willing to give up then the 
variance that was there for the tanks, as a housekeeping to take that off the proper-
ty?  They do not have the… 
 
Kerm Billette apologized and stated he did not hear that. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if they are willing to give up the variance for the tanks?  
 
Kerm Billette stated yes. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 20 

 

 

Chairman Watripont asked other individuals at the podium to state their names and 
addresses for the record. 
 
Kenan Selimagic, 11705 Iacopelli Court, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48312, ap-
peared before the Board. 
 
Kerm Billette stated introduced the next individual as the owner of the property. 
 
Jane Neuman, 27240 Ryan, Warren, appeared before the Board and stated she is 
the owner. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked the individuals. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated just trying to understand on item number 2, along 
the gravel for the south property line per the plan, no less than forty (40) feet to the 
front property line, are they speaking of the seventeen (17) spaces in the gravel ar-
ea? On item number 2. 
 
(Inaudible individual responded yes) 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated okay.  She is not seeing the dimension of that area 
between…one moment… 
 
Kerm Billette stated item number 2 is the parking over to the west; entire property is 
all gravel and that is where there is a twenty-six (26) trucks would be parked there 
mostly for storage. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated no, item number 2. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated item number 2 is the east. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated forty (40) feet to the property line; that was the sev-
enteen (17) spaces.  She sees a thirty (30) foot gate, do they have enough room be-
tween the gate and the gravel area to come out and turn these; because they only 
have one entrance into this from Sherwood, correct? 
 
Kenan Selimagic stated yes. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza asked then when they are parking in those seventeen (17) 
spaces, how do they get out and turn around?  
 
Kenan Selimagic asked how to get out to the road out to Sherwood?  
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated yes, do they back out?  
 
Kenan Selimagic asked if it was with the semi tractor or the… 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated yes, when they are in that gravel area. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 21 

 

 

 
Kenan Selimagic stated they would do a full turn; there is enough space for semi-
tractor and trailer to do a full turnaround and get out from the front way. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated they would get on to the asphalt and then turn from 
there? 
 
Kenan Selimagic stated yes. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza stated great and thanked Mr. Selimagic. 
 
Kerm Billette stated there is one thing he should mention that the parking for trucks 
on the west side of the property where the bumper blocks are has hardly ever been 
fully used; the area to the north of there for he believes five (5) spaces, that do not 
have bumper blocks; that was just an overkill for the amount of property needed. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked Mr. Billette that there will be no junk trailers or anything 
on the property, correct?  
 
Kerm Billette stated yes, that was correct.  They dispose of any parts or anything 
that they have for repairs, they dispose of immediately. 
 
Kenan Selimagic stated usually the tractors or trailers are there for a short period of 
time.  It gives them a great advantage to actually keep them there for a few hours or 
even a day or so because what they do is that they inspect their equipment every 
time at return.  They are able to have their safety measures go over a twenty (20) 
point check on the trailers to make sure the trailers and the tractors are compliant on 
the road, so it gives them a great advantage to have that there, rather than going out 
to find a more habit that drivers do it on their own, which are not as experienced as 
their safety managers and mechanics. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Mr. Selimagic. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he actually has no problem with this, but back to 
his question, one of the biggest things that the Board sees—and he knows that Mr. 
Selimagic understands that they do not keep parts—but they do not keep used tires 
on the property either?  
 
Kenan Selimagic stated no actually, they have a vendor that picks up used tires and 
actually buys it from them for recycling, so anytime there are used tires, usually 
same day they come out. 
 
Board Member Descamps asked same day?  
 
Kenan Selimagic stated yes, same day, they bring in new ones and exchange them 
for the old ones.  
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 22 

 

 

Board Member Descamps stated perfect and thanked Mr. Selimagic.  Hearing no 
other comments from the Board, he would like to make his motion. 
 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Descamps made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to: 
1. Allow 24,825 sq. ft. of outdoor storage for trucks and trailers on gravel as per 

the plan along the east and south property lines. 
2. Allow 12,925 sq. ft. of truck and trailer parking on gravel as per the plan to no 

less than 40’ of the front property line. 
 
With the Condition, that there would be no junk storage on the property and also 
to voluntarily relinquish the variance for the tank of diesel fuel. 

 
Reason being: Size and Shape of the Lot, Needs Approval of the Board, and Not a 
Detriment to the Area. 
 
Board Member Pauta supported the motion. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated that Board Member Descamps had forgotten to men-
tion the 40’ of the front property line and that is where the variance is supposed to 
be, so he needs to include that. 
 
Board Member Descamps stated he would like to amend his motion to:  No less 
than 40’ of the front property line. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Descamps; Sup-
port by Board Member Pauta to approve the variance as requested, with the 
acknowledgement (Condition) they are voluntarily relinquishing their August 26, 
2009 variance and that there be no junk stored for the reasons:  Not a Detriment to 
the Area, and Size and Shape of the Lot.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 
 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 23 

 

 

15. PUBLIC HEARING   APPLICANT: Metro Sanitation LLC 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Mr. Michael Van Loon 
COMMON DESCRIPTION:  22001 Hoover Road 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  13-34-276-004 
ZONE:     M-3 
 
VARIANCES REQUESTED: Permission to: 
1. Construct new building to no less than 30’ from the south property line. 
2. To install a scale in the required south side setback back as per the plan. 
3. To construct a ten (10) foot wall along the south property line as per the plan. 
ORDINANCES and REQUIREMENTS: 
Section 17.02 Paragraph (b): Side yards and rear yards. M-3, 60 feet each. 
Section 4.17 Paragraph (a): Non-conforming Use-Continuance. Any lawful non-
conforming use consisting of a building or land usage existing at the time of the ef-
fective date of this Ordinance may be continued, except as herein prohibited or re-
stricted, provided that the building or use thereof shall not be structurally changed, 
altered or enlarged, unless such altered or enlarged building or use shall conform to 
the provisions of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. 
Section 4D.38 Wall Height: Obscuring walls and fences in non-residential zones 
shall be six (6) feet in height. 
 
Chairman Watripont asked the individual at the podium to state their name and ad-
dress for the record. 
 
Michael Van Loon, Architect, P.O. Box 2227, Birmingham, Michigan 48012, ap-
peared before the Board. 
 
Jack Compo, Metro Sanitation, 13150 Rhea Court, Shelby Township, appeared be-
fore the Board.  
 
Chairman Watripont asked the reason for their petition. 
 
Michael Van Loon stated they are in the process of redoing the Metro Sanitation 
building and the offices adjoining it and currently the existing building is built into the 
backyard and side yard setbacks; what they are planning to do is bring it into com-
pliance with the backyard setback, but because of the area that they need, it would 
go about ten (10) feet further into the side yard setback.  In addition, they are plan-
ning on rerouting some of the traffic in the area to make it a little safer, a little more 
convenient.  They are going to run the public part of the operation to the back of the 
building and run it along the remaining side yard setback.  In so doing, they would 
like to request to build a ten (10) foot high masonry wall; currently there is a ten (10) 
foot high masonry wall around the west end, which is the backyard and the north 
end, which is the front yard.  They want to do this for two reasons, one to help con-
tain some of the sound and also some of the dust that occurs during these opera-
tions; in addition, they would like to move the scales so that the public when they are 
coming in, is not in the way of the truck traffic that is currently operating on the site.  
All of this is done in a way to try to get further buffer between the backyard setback; 
the backyard setback is adjacent to a residential area; the side yard setback is adja-



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 24 

 

 

cent to an operation similar to in usage to the current operation by Metro Sanitation; 
both zoned M-3.  These are the variances they are looking for. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated this is a public hearing, anyone in the audience wishing 
to speak on this item to approach the podium.  He asked the individual at the podium 
to state his name and address for the record. 
 
John Stevens, appeared before the Board and stated that he represents ownership 
of Cold Heading Company—the direct neighbor—and he knows that Metro Sanita-
tion is allowed on their driveway, on the right-of-way on their property to be able to 
get into their yard, but he has a few concerns.  He has not seen the plans so he 
does not know what they are planning; his main concern is the nature of the busi-
ness and of course in being rubbish and whatever; last year the products that were 
being collected were really more than just the rubbish, it was garbage basically and 
they were very concerned.  It affected their staff, it affected their work, some of their 
guys did not want to even come into the yards and collect the steel, because they 
have a big steel yard as the Board knows—they have a large operation there, so 
those are the kinds of things that concern them.  The other aspect is due to the na-
ture of the business, they see a lot of rodents and they would like the big wall, of 
course they would like to see the ten (10) foot wall; it says in the Agenda that ac-
cording to their petition—a ten (10) foot wall will be provided along the south proper-
ty line; the south property line is the property line between Cold Heading and Metro 
Sanitation; however, on the bottom of the Agenda, Section 4D.38 Wall Height: Ob-
scuring walls and fences in non-residential zones shall be six (6) feet in height; well 
which means that it overrides the ten (10) foot wall.  They prefer a ten (10) foot wall 
because they think the rodents can climb six (6) foot walls, so that was one of the 
things that they are really concerned about, so what they would like to see, they 
would like to see that under better control.  Last year, they had horrendously bad sit-
uation with the amount of trash that was being collected and heaped up and became 
a real unsightly situation; it affected their operations immensely.  They informed 
people, but they know their staff refused to be working in the yard and that was a 
major deal for them.  So, they would really like to see the Board consider that Metro 
Sanitation put up a huge wall, both to protect them as well as the residential neigh-
borhood; because the residential neighborhood were equally affected by the rodents 
and there was no question that there is rodents.  This is the issue that really…he 
does not know whether it was the Board’s prerogative to decide that or whether that 
was a City Council matter or a Board of Appeals matter, he does not know, but it is 
an issue.  He thanked the Board. 
 
Chairman Watripont thanked Mr. Stevens and asked if there was anyone else wish-
ing to speak on this matter?  Hearing and seeing none, he turns the matter over to 
the Board. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated first of all, she thinks that the excessive trash and ro-
dent problem was because of the massive flood that the City had and she is sure 
that they had to get a lot more trash than they normally do? 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 25 

 

 

Jack Compo apologized and asked if Board Member Pauta could restate her ques-
tion.  
 
Board Member Pauta stated because of the flooding the City had from the storm, 
they had excessive trash during that period of time.  
 
Jack Compo stated that is true; due to the storms and at that time, Warren was un-
der emergency—he would say it was Federal—that…he apologizes, sometimes he 
skips for words but… 
 
Chairman Watripont stated emergency disaster area. 
 
Jack Compo stated yes and thanked Mr. Watripont and stated he apologizes. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated she thinks that anybody that is in sanitation was ex-
tremely busy last year. 
 
Jack Compo stated yes, ma’am. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated the rodent issue—she means—she has heard between 
the City Council, them and planning, there are rodents everywhere and they have to 
do their best to just keep it under control.  She does not have any problem with this 
at all.  They are going to put the ten (10) foot walls up, right?  
 
Jack Compo stated absolutely.  The ten (10) foot wall is to protect their neighbor and 
he definitely respects his neighbor and he is appreciative of him; they have been 
neighbors since 1984 and he has been a great neighbor to them and the business 
problems they had last year, he does apologize for, but going forward, the ten (10) 
foot wall on the south side is definitely to protect him and the people that work for 
him and especially the new building that will go up, will solve all of these issues and 
get everything under control the way they are supposed to.  Absolutely they are dili-
gent if a problem with rodents, they do have an exterminator that comes regularly 
and sets up tramps and whatnot. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked they do not have any outside storage of rubbish of any 
kind. 
 
Jack Compo stated no, all of the rubbish that they do have is contained at this time.  
Last year, due to the nature of what Warren was going through and Southeastern 
Michigan, there was an overabundance and he does admit that, but at this point and 
since then—after they had things under control—there is no outside storage or trash. 
 
Board Member Furgal asked if she could speak to the gentleman from Cold Head-
ing; she forgot his name. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated Mr. Stevens. 
 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 26 

 

 

Board Member Furgal asked Mr. Stevens if the rodent problem been abated or is it 
still in existence?  
 
John Stevens stated he personally does not know; he is only reporting what his staff 
tells.  They have a number of people that work in the yard that they are forever de-
livering steel, etc, so they see it actually and they report to them; they report.  Really 
what they are seeing does not frighten their staff because they are big guys, but they 
are very concerned about the neighbors; the neighbors across the street, they have 
the same problem; they must have the same problem.  What they see, they must 
have the same problem. 
 
Board Member Furgal stated she could remember past issues with this property and 
that was why she was asking. 
 
John Stevens stated that was why he was saying if they have a big high wall all the 
way around it, it contains it; it is more of containing the issue than anything else.  
The neighborhood itself is fine except this is just the nature of the business. 
 
Board Member Pauta stated if no other discussion, she would like to make a motion. 
 

Motion: 
Board Member Pauta made the motion to approve the petitioner’s request to:  
1. Construct new building to no less than 30’ from the south property line. 
2. To install a scale in the required south side setback back as per the plan. 
3. To construct a ten (10) foot wall along the south property line as per the plan. 
 
Reason being: Size and Shape of the Lot, Not a Detriment to the Area; because he 
promised that he is going to take care of it. 
 
Board Member Descamps supported the motion. 
 
Chairman Watripont stated there is a motion by Board Member Pauta; Support by 
Board Member Descamps in favor of the item; reasons being, Size and Shape of 
the Lot and Not a Detriment to the Area.  He asked for Roll Call. 
 
Roll Call: 
A roll call was taken on the motion to approve and the motion carried (6-0). 

 

Board Member Pauta   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Descamps  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member H. Brasza  Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member S. Brasza Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Board Member Furgal   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion. 

Chairman Watripont   Yes, for the reasons stated in the motion, but  
      he does hope they work closely with their  
      neighbors and try to keep it as clean as possible. 



CITY OF WARREN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2015 

Page 27 

 

 

 
 
The Petitioner’s request has been GRANTED. 
 
Jack Compo stated absolutely and they definitely want to be good neighbors and 
they are willing to do anything possible to actually have a great peaceful relationship. 
 
 

16. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Watripont asked if there was any new business.  
 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Motion: 
Board Member Furgal made the motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Board Member S. Brasza supported the motion. 
 
Voice Vote:  
A voice vote was taken on the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 

 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

        Judy Furgal 
        Vice-Chairwoman of the Board 

    


